RECEIVED

Feb 16 2022

SC Court of Appeals

THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In The Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM GREENVILLE COUNTY
Court of Common Pleas

Hon. Alex Kinlaw, Jr., Circuit Court Judge

C.A. No.: 2019-CP-23-06576
Appellate Case No. 2020-001075

Jefferson Davis, Jr.Appellant,

v.

Nate Leupp, Facebook, Inc., & John Doe(s) 1–40,Respondent.

FINAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

Jefferson Davis, Jr.
403 McCarter Avenue
Greenville, SC 29615
843-901-8036 (cell)
jeff@apogeetax.com

Appellant

STATEMENT OF ISSUES ON APPEAL

- I. DID THE TRIAL COURT PROPERLY APPLY RULE 12(B)(8), SCRPC, TO THE PRESENT ACTION?
 - a. IS “**ANOTHER ACTION PENDING**” AGAINST A DEFENDANT WHEN THE DEFENDANT WAS NEVER SERVED, NOR VOLUNTARILY APPEARED, IN THE FIRST ACTION?
 - b. IS AN ACTION “**BETWEEN THE SAME PARTIES**” WHEN THE NAMED PARTIES IN THE TWO ACTIONS ARE SUBSTANTIALLY DIFFERENT?
 - c. IS AN ACTION “**FOR THE SAME CLAIM**” WHEN THE FACTS IN THE SECOND ACTION ARE SUBSTANTIALLY DIFFERENT, AND EVEN OCCURRED AFTER THE FILING OF THE FIRST ACTION?

- II. DID THE TRIAL COURT ERR IN DENYING APPELLANTS MOTION TO AMEND HIS COMPLAINT IN ORDER TO DELETE THE 6TH, 7TH AND 8TH CAUSES OF ACTION?

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This is an appeal from an order dismissing a Greenville County case based on Rule 12(b)(8), SCRPC, finding the underlying matter to be duplicative of a case in Richland County. Nothing however could be further from the truth.

SC caselaw tells us that there are three required elements for dismissal under Rule 12(b)(8): (1) another action pending, (2) between the same parties, (3) for the same claim. All three must exist for a 12(b)(8) dismissal to be appropriate. In the current matter, none of the three exist.

Furthermore, our SC appellate courts have ruled that these three elements are to be interpreted very narrowly. Basically, the three elements must “**be precisely or substantially the same**” in both actions for a 12(b)(8) dismissal to be appropriate.

Finally, a Rule 12(b)(8) dismissal is a draconian and final measure. Our South Carolina appellate courts have made it clear that Rule 12(b)(8) should only be used, *if ever*, in the narrowest and most limited of circumstances. Such unique circumstances do not exist in the case at hand.

In common parlances, Appellant / Plaintiff was (figuratively) “run over by a car” in which Respondent was cheering on from the sidelines (the Richland Action), and later, in a totally different location, Appellant / Plaintiff was (figuratively) “run over by yet a different car” which this time the Respondent was actually driving, with a whole set of different passengers and circumstances at hand (the Greenville Action). And now the Respondent is claiming an unlimited (and continuing) immunity from liability to continue running over Appellant anytime and anywhere ... because he was named (yet did not even appear) in a lawsuit from years ago?

No, this fact situation is most certainly not the intent of Rule 12(b)(8), SCRPC.

STANDARD OF REVIEW

“The appellate court applies the same standard of review as the circuit court in scrutinizing the application of Rule 12(b)(8), SCRPC. *Capital City Ins. Co. v. BP Staff, Inc.*, 382 S.C. 92, 99, 674 S.E.2d 524, 528 (Ct.App.2009).” *Cricket Cove Ventures, LLC v. Gilland*, 390 S.C. 312, 320, 701 S.E.2d 39, 44 (S.C. App. 2010)

In the case at hand, the Court of Appeals reviews the trial court’s findings of fact and legal conclusions, *de nova*.

FACTS

The “Richland Action”

On May 3rd, 2018, Appellant filed an action in Richland County. (R. pp. 144-157; Richland Action - Complaint) (**hereinafter the “Richland Action”**). Respondent was ***NOT*** named as a Defendant in the original complaint in the Richland Action. (R. pp. 146 & 147; Richland Action - Complaint.)

On November 19th, 2018, Appellant filed a FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT in the Richland Action. (R. pp. 167-213; Richland Action – First Amended Complaint.) Respondent was named as a defendant in the FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT. (R. pp. 167, 169 & 176; Richland Action – First Amended Complaint.) However, Respondent ***was never served nor did he make an appearance*** in the Richland Action. (R. pp. 218-249, Richland Action - Docket)

On February 19th, 2019, the FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT in the Richland Action was stricken in its entirety for a procedural issue, and all newly named defendants were dismissed with prejudice (bizarrely enough). This order is currently on appeal and the trial court case is stayed pending an outcome of said appeal. See *Davis, Appellant v. Ellen Weaver, Palmetto Promise Institute, et al., Respondents*. Appellate Case No.: 2019-000648.

The “Greenville Action”

(The Case Subject to This Appeal)

On November 12th, 2019, Appellant filed his Summons and Complaint against Respondent in Greenville County. (R. pp. 12-45; Complaint) (**hereinafter the “Greenville Action”**). The Complaint named Respondent and two additional defendants that were never named in or parties to the Richland Action. *Id.* The Greenville Action included numerous factual

allegations that were not included in the Richland Action, some of which even occurred after the filing of the FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT in the Richland Action.

On December 20th, 2019, Respondent filed a Motion to Dismiss the Greenville Action based on, among other things, Rule 12(b)(8) because Respondent had been “named” in the Richland Action (*although Respondent was never served nor did he appear in said action*). (R. pp. 46-47.)

On June 16th, 2020, at 12:21AM, Respondent, in violation of Judge Kinlaw’s “**At least 72 hours prior to the hearing**” time requirement, filed a Memorandum in Support of Respondent’s Motion to Dismiss. (R. pp. 48-72.)

On June 16th, 2020, at 9:30AM, a hearing was held in Greenville on Respondent’s Motion to Dismiss. (R. pp 81-143, Transcript.)

On June 17th, 2020, the trial Court issued a Form 4 Order granting Respondent’s Motion to Dismiss based on Rule 12(b)(8), SCRCF, finding the action was duplicative. Order to follow. (R. pp 1-3.)

On June 29th, 2020, the trial Court issued its Order of Dismissal, as completely drafted by Respondents legal counsel (without any changes), based solely on Rule 12(b)(8), SCRCF. (R. pp. 4-7.)

On July 10th, 2020, Appellant timely filed his Motion (with Memorandum) to Reconsider. (R. pp. 73-80.)

On July 27th, 2020, the trial Court denied Appellant’s Motion to Reconsider. (R. pp. 8-11.)

On August 4th, 2020, Appellant timely filed his Notice of Appeal.

ARGUMENTS

I. **THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN ITS APPLICATION OF RULE 12(B)(8), SCRPC, TO THE PRESENT ACTION.**

Avoidance of "duplicative litigation" is the underlying principle of Rule 12(b)(8) *State ex rel. Wilson v. Condon*, 410 S.C. 331, 333, 764 S.E.2d 247, 248 (2014)

There are three elements necessary for dismissal under Rule 12(b)(8), SCRPC. "In South Carolina, dismissal under Rule 12(b)(8) may be proper when there is **(1) another action pending, (2) between the same parties, (3) for the same claim.**" *Capital City Ins. Co. v. BP Staff, Inc.*, 382 S.C. 92, 105, 674 S.E.2d 524, 531 (S.C. App. 2009) (bold emphasis added).

Although each of the three elements are required, the present appeal fails under not just one, but all three requirements of *Capital City Ins. Co v. BP Staff, Inc.* As such the trial court erred in its application of Rule 12(b)(8), SCRPC, and thus must be reversed.

a. **THERE IS NOT "ANOTHER ACTION PENDING" AGAINST THE RESPONDENT / DEFENDANT WHEN THE DEFENDANT WAS NEVER SERVED, NOR VOLUNTARILY APPEARED, IN THE FIRST ACTION.**

There is in fact no other action pending against Respondent / Defendant Leupp as he has never been a party, nor voluntarily appeared, in the Richland Action. (R. pp.218-249, Richland Action Docket - *Davis v. Ellen Weaver, Palmetto Promise Institute, et al.* 2018-CP-40-02425.) Neither has Respondent / Defendant Leupp been a party or voluntarily appeared in the ongoing

interlocutory appeal. (*Davis, Appellant v. Ellen Weaver, Palmetto Promise Institute, et al., Respondents*. Appellate Case No.: 2019-000648.)

Respondent / Defendant Leupp was “named” in the Richland Action as a potential John Doe, in an abundance of caution as ordered by the Court, but he was never served, nor did he appear, and as such he is not a party to that case.

Having not been served or appeared, and simply being named in the title of a case is not sufficient ... alone ... for Rule 12(b)(8). Jeopardy does not attach, nor is there *res judicata*, when a party has never been served or even appeared in a case.

b. AN ACTION IS NOT “BETWEEN THE SAME PARTIES” WHEN THE NAMED PARTIES IN THE TWO ACTIONS ARE SUBSTANTIALLY DIFFERENT.

The parties in the two cases do include both Appellant / Plaintiff Davis and Respondent / Defendant Leupp, but that is where the identity of “same parties” ends.

In the current Greenville Action, the named Defendants Facebook, Inc. and Automattic, Inc. are not in the Richland Action.

Furthermore, the “John Doe(s)” in the Greenville Action are believed to be substantially different than the “John Doe(s)” in the Richland Action. The Richland Action has over 30 named defendants that are not named parties in the Greenville Action. The necessary “same parties” is non-existent.

c. AN ACTION IS NOT “FOR THE SAME CLAIM” WHEN THE FACTS IN THE SECOND ACTION ARE SUBSTANTIALLY DIFFERENT, AND EVEN OCCURRED AFTER THE FILING OF THE FIRST ACTION.

And here is where it really gets good. Respondent / Defendant Leupp is named in the Richland Action’s **First Amended Complaint only three (3) times**. (R. p. 198, Richland Action – First Amended Complaint.) Although the Richland Action’s First Amended Complaint was 45 pages long and over 30 defendants, this is the entire extent of any reference to Respondent Leupp.

159. Upon information and belief, Defendant Leupp and other John Doe(s) are responsible for the public website about Plaintiff Davis

160. Defendant Leupp has upon information and belief done similar things to other parties in the past.

161. Defendant Leupp is a pawn of Defendant Weaver and Defendant DeMint.

(Richland Action – First Amended Complaint, page, 30.)

Respondent / Defendant Leupp is specifically named in the **Greenville Action’s Complaint a grand total of 136 times in a Summons & Complaint that is 32 pages long**. (R. pp.12-45, Greenville Action Complaint.)

The First Amended Complaint in the Richland Action was filed on November 19th, 2018. The bulk of the actions complained about in the Greenville case occurred in **February, March & April of 2019** and involves matters and accusations completely unrelated and nonexistent in the First Amended Complaint in the Richland Action. (R. pp. 21-33, etc., Greenville Action Complaint.) Respondent wants to make it appear the two cases are the same, but they are not by any means duplicative.

“SAME CLAIM” NARROWLY INTERPRETED REQUIREMENT: Respondent cites as support for dismissal under Rule 12(b)(8) the three (3) part test in the *Capital City Ins. Co. v. BP Staff, Inc* case. Interestingly enough however, *Capital City* (S.C. App. 2009) REVERSED AND REMANDED the trial court’s 12(b)(8) dismissal finding that, as in this case, the three elements did not exist.

Additionally, the analysis in the 2009 *Capital City* appeal was discussed further by the S.C. Court of Appeals the following year in *Cricket Cove Ventures, LLC v. Gilland*, 390 S.C. 312, 701 S.E.2d 39 (S.C. App. 2010) as follows:

“This Court revisited the "same claim" component of Rule 12(b)(8) in *Capital City*, and interpreted the rule narrowly:

The rule has historic ties to a former statute providing a defendant a similar opportunity to demur; our supreme court traditionally interpreted that statute narrowly, stating that it only applied when there was identity of parties, causes of action and relief. We find this approach consistent with modern day practice under rules similar to our Rule 12(b)(8). Accordingly, we interpret the rule narrowly such that ***the claim must be precisely or substantially the same in both proceedings*** in order for the drastic remedy of dismissal to be appropriate under Rule 12(b)(8).

382 S.C. at 105-06, 674 S.E.2d at 531-32 (citations omitted) (emphasis added).”

Our South Carolina appellate courts have made it clear that Rule 12(b)(8) should only be used, ***if ever***, in the narrowest and most limited of circumstances. Such unique circumstances do not exist in the case at hand.

II. THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN DENYING APPELLANT’S MOTION TO AMEND HIS COMPLAINT IN ORDER TO DELETE THE 6TH, 7TH AND 8TH CAUSES OF ACTION.

Respondent further asked the trial court for leave to Amend his Original Complaint so that he may, delete his 6th (Tortuous Interference with Prospective Contractual Relations), 7th (Unfair Trade Practices), and 8th (Piercing the Corporate Veil) causes of action against Respondent. (R. pp.73-80.) This amendment would have further differentiated the two cases.

Rule 15 (a) of the SCRCPP, states that “a party may amend his pleading...by leave of court or by written consent of the adverse party; and leave shall be freely given when justice so requires and does not prejudice any other party.” Our Courts have interpreted this rule liberally. “Leave to amend pleadings pursuant to Rule 15 SCRCPP, shall be liberally and freely given when justice so requires and does not prejudice any other party.” *Crestwood Golf Club, Inc. v. Potter*, 328 S.C. 201, 493 S.E.2d 826 (1997); *Pruitt v. Bowers*, 330 S.C. 483, 499 S.E.2d 250 (S.C. App. 1998). “This rule strongly favors amendments and the Court is encouraged to freely grant leave to amend.” *Jarrell v. Seaboard Sys. R.R.*, 294 S.C. 183, 363 S.E.2d 398 (S.C. App. 1987). Rule 15 SCRCPP, which governs the amendment of pleadings, strongly favors amendments and the court is encouraged to freely grant leave to amend. *Parker v. Spartanburg Sanitary Sewer Dist.*, 362 S.C. 276, 607 S.E.2d 711 (Ct. App. 2005). It is well established that a motion to amend a pleading is addressed to the sound discretion of the trial judge. *Duncan v. CRS Serrine Eng’rs*, 337 S.C. 537, 524 S.E.2d 115 (C. App. 1999); see *Berry v. McLeod*, 328 S.C. 435, 492 S.E.2d 794 (Ct. App. 1997) (Courts have wide latitude in amending pleadings).

The trial court erred in denying Appellants request to amend his original complaint deleting said causes of action and any other changes to further differentiate the two cases.

CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons, Appellant asks this Honorable Court to reverse the judgment of the circuit court order dismissing this case under Rule 12(b)(8) and grant Plaintiff Davis leave to Amend his Complaint deleting the 6th, 7th and 8th causes of action against Respondent and making any further amendments Appellant deems necessary.