THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In The Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM GREENVILLE COUNTY
Court of Common Pleas
Alex Kinlaw, Jr., Circuit Court Judge

Appellate Case No. 2020-001075
Civil Action No. 2019-CP-23-06576

RECEIVED

JAN 11 2022

SC Court of Appeals

Jefferson Davis, Jr. Appellant,

v.

Nate Leupp, Automatic, Inc., Facebook, Inc.,
and John Does 1-40 Respondents.

FINAL BRIEF OF RESPONDENT NATE LEUPP

Geoffrey K. Chambers, Esquire
CPerl Group
411 Walnut Street
Number 10646
Green Cove Springs, FL 32043
Phone: 864-508-0899
Geoffrey@CPerlgroup.com

January 5, 2022

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

² Appellant fails to show any duty owed to him to investigate the truth of an allegation under South Carolina Law. The existence of a duty to investigate is not established. *Metts v. Mims*, 370 S.C. 529, 635 S.E.2d 640 (S.C. App. 2006) (Failure to investigate in and of itself is insufficient to establish that a defendant recklessly disregarded the falsity of a published article.) Without the existence of a duty, this cause of action can be dismissed under SCRPC 12(b)(6).

³ This cause of action was dismissed in Richland County because no contract currently existed. (TR Richland County Amended Order) Future contracts that do not exist are speculative. "Whatever actual damages were the natural, direct and immediate result may be recovered upon proof of the claim. Remote or speculative damages are not recoverable. *Llewellyn v. Atl. Greyhound Corp.*, 204 S.C. 156, 28 S.E.2d 673 (S.C. 1944). Without the existence of a contract this cause of action can be similarly dismissed under SCRPC 12(b)(6).

⁴ This cause of action has been dismissed in Richland County because the nature of the allegations are not ones that would fall under trade practices as defined in the Unfair Trade Practices Act. (TR Richland County Amended Order) Furthermore the Appellant fails to plead and show that the Attorney General was presented with the exact specifics of this complaint and declined to bring an action. (citation Unfair Trade Practices Act SC Code Section...) As such, this cause of action as pled can be dismissed under SCRPC 12(b)(6).

The veil piercing is plead in both paragraph 156 of this complaint (Complaint Case No. 2019-cp-23-06576, ¶¶155-159. (R 40)) and paragraph 246 of the Richland County complaint.⁵ Complaint, Case No. 2018-cp-40-02524, ¶¶ 245-248. (R 211).

The conspiracy cause of action is plead in the same way in both complaints. It is located at paragraph 161 of this complaint. Complaint Case No. 2019-cp-23-06576, ¶¶160-168. (R 41-42). *See also* Complaint, Case No. 2018-cp-40-02524, ¶¶ 249-256. (R 211-212).

Like the Richland County case, Appellant alleges a wide-ranging political conspiracy to harm the Appellant because of Appellants actions and positions regarding special needs scholarships for children. It involves the same set of facts, Respondent Leupp is a defendant in both actions and the complaint mentions Oran Smith, Palmetto Promise Institute, and Jim Demint who are parties to the Richland County action. Complaint Case No. 2019-cp-23-06576, ¶¶48-49. (R 21). South Carolina is a small and closely linked state. There is not room for multiple statewide conspiracies over the same motivation, set of facts, and circumstances. Our Courts have always held that a person cannot bring simultaneous actions for the same set of facts and circumstances in multiple counties against the same Defendant. The Trial Court was correct in dismissing this matter pursuant to Rule 12(b)8 SCRPC. Appellant chose to sue Respondent Leupp in Richland County first, was ordered to name and serve Respondent Leupp in Richland County and his action was dismissed with prejudice and is under appeal. This was properly brought in Richland County and this matter should remain there. The fact that Respondent Leupp was dismissed with prejudice and Appellant has continued the action against Respondent Leupp by appeal shows Res Judicata and 12(b)8 apply. Continuing to fight the appeal along with bringing a second action naming the

⁵ Respondent Leupp is an individual and corporate veil piercing is not applicable. No allegations of acts or omissions are made against Defendants Facebook or Automatic. (TR Complaint) As such this cause of action can be dismissed under SCRPC 12(b)(6).

same party, facts, and causes of action and doubling down on John Doe Defendants after being ordered to identify all John Does shows the Respondent's additional disregard for our Courts. Blatant defiance of an order alone or in conjunction with 12(b)(8) SCRPC is enough to dismiss this cause of action with prejudice. Also 12(b)(8) SCRPC alone is sufficient to dismiss the present action with prejudice. The lower court had discretion to dismiss this case on multiple grounds and acted properly on the facts presented.

II. Dismissal of Appellant's claims against Nate Leupp under Rule 12(b)(8) is proper despite Appellant naming the window dressing parties Facebook and Automatic in the caption and claiming unknown parties are involved and is also proper because once causes of action are eliminated as non-viable, the remaining viable causes of action are identical parties, causes of action, and sets of facts and circumstances.

"A defendant may seek dismissal of an action pursuant to Rule 12(b)(8) when another action is pending between the same parties for the same claim." *Cricket Cove Ventures, LLC v. Gilland* (S.C. App. 2010). *Corbett v. City of Myrtle Beach*, 336 S.C. 601, 610, 521 S.E.2d 276, 281 (Ct. App. 1999) (holding dismissal pursuant to Rule 12(b)(8), SCRCF, appropriate where claims involved the same parties and were based upon the same facts and circumstances); *Cox v. Woodmen of World Ins. Co.*, 347 S.C. 460, 469-70, 556 S.E.2d 397, 402 (Ct. App. 2001) (explaining the trial court properly denied a motion to dismiss pursuant to Rule 12(b)(8) where a class action in an Alabama court involving the same parties and the same or substantially the same issues was decertified).

Slander is actionable per se only if it charges the plaintiff with one of five types of acts or characteristics: (1) commission of a crime of moral turpitude; (2) contraction of a loathsome disease; (3) adultery; (4) unchastity; or (5) unfitness in one's business or profession." *Id.* at 511, 506 S.E.2d at 502. "In all other cases-namely, when slander does not fall into the above-named categories-special damages must be established. *Parrish v. Allison*, 656 S.E.2d 382, 376 S.C. 308 (S.C. App. 2007). "If a defamation is actionable per se, then under common law principles the law presumes the defendant acted with common law malice and that the plaintiff suffered general damages. If a defamation is not actionable per se, then at common law the plaintiff must plead and prove common law actual malice and special damages. *Lily v. Belk's Dep't Store*, 178 S.C. 278,

182 S.E. 889 (1935), *Holtzscheiter v. Thomson Newspapers, Inc.*, 506 S.E.2d 497, 332 S.C. 502 (S.C. 1998).

“Rule 12(b)(6) requires the plaintiff to allege facts.” *Paradis v. Charleston County School District*, 424 S.C. 603, 615, 819 S.E.2d 147, 153 (Ct. App. 2018). To bring a defamation action, the Plaintiff must allege who made defamatory statements, what they said and to the exact person or people to whom those statements were said or published. Merely claiming there are false accusations on a potentially disparaging subject is not sufficient under Rule 12(b)(6) requirement to plead facts. *Id.* Rule 8(a)(2) further requires that the facts show that “the pleader is entitled to relief.” Rule 8(a)(2), SCRCP. “When a plaintiff states nothing more than legal conclusions, a claim should fail.” *Id.* (citing *Talbott v. Padgett*, 30 S.C. 167, 171, 8 S.E. 845, 847 (1889)).

Cricket Cove Ventures, LLC v. Gilland, 390 S.C. 312, 324, 701 S.E.2d 39, 46 (Ct. App. 2010) (stating civil conspiracy consists of three elements: (1) a combination of two or more persons, (2) joining for the purpose of injuring the plaintiff, (3) which causes him special damage); *Pye v. Estate of Fox*, 369 S.C. 555, 567, 633 S.E.2d 505, 511 (2006) (holding that to establish a conspiracy, the plaintiff must produce evidence, direct or circumstantial, from which a party may reasonably infer the joint assent of the minds of two or more parties to the prosecution of the enterprise).

“Generally, a party must be a real party in interest to the litigation to have standing.” *Hill v. S.C. Dep’t of Health & Envtl. Control*, 389 S.C. 1, 22, 698 S.E.2d 612, 623 (2010) (internal quotation marks omitted). “A real party in interest for purposes of standing is a party with a real, material, or substantial interest in the outcome of the litigation.” *Id.* (internal quotation marks omitted). SCRCP 17(a) requires that every action be prosecuted “in the name of the real party in interest *Bank of Am., N.A. v. Todd Draper, Mortg. Elec. Registration Sys., Inc.*, 405 S.C. 214, 746

S.E.2d 478 (S.C. App. 2013).” The South Carolina rule with respect to the real party in interest requirement is patterned after the comparable federal rule, which has been regarded as embodying the concept that an action shall be prosecuted “in the name of the party who, by the substantive law, has the right sought to be enforced.” *Id.*. “The requirement of standing is not an inflexible one.” *Sloan v. Sch. Dist. of Greenville Cnty.*, 342 S.C. 515, 524, 537 S.E.2d 299, 304 (Ct.App.2000) (internal quotation marks omitted).

The Parties Material to the Causes of Action are the Same Appellant and Same Respondent as Appellant named in Richland County.

SCRCP Rule 6 requires a plain statement of the facts supporting causes of action.

The Complaint fails to provide any facts to support any viable causes of action against Facebook or Automatic. No acts or omissions are alleged for these two corporate parties. Complaint Case No. 2019-cp-23-06576. (R 13-43). As such they are not real parties to this action.

John Does are described as unknowns who directed Respondent Leupp. Complaint Case No. 2019-cp-23-06576, ¶120. (R 33) (TR Complaint 120). John Does are specifically identified as Jim DeMint and Ellen Weaver. Complaint Case No. 2018-cp-40-02425, ¶161. (R 198). Respondent further describes the John Does as follows: “individuals, entities, members of or leadership in the Greenville County or South Carolina Republican Party, government agencies or taxpayer supported organizations, political advocacy non-profits, public relations firms, lobbyists or even elected politicians or candidates for office.” Complaint Case No. 2019-cp-23-06576, ¶122. (R 33)

The Richland County action specifies the following Defendants: Ellen Weaver, Chad Connelly, Oran P. Smith, Neil J. Mellen, Howard S. Rich, Rick Reames, Stephen D. Kirkland, Palmetto Promise

Institute, Palmetto Family Council, Palmetto Family Action, South Carolinians for Responsible Government, SCRG Foundation, Access Opportunity South Carolina, Friedman Foundation for Educational Choice, Inc., Cato Institute, South Carolina Educational Credit for Exceptional Needs Children Fund, South Carolina Education Oversight Committee, South Carolina Department of Revenue, South Carolina Department of Labor, Licensing and Regulation, First Impressions, Inc. d/b/a/ Richard Quinn & Associates, First Tuesday Strategies, LLC, Bill Wilson, Jason Bedrick, Jim DeMint, Randy Page, Tony Denny, Phillip Cease, Melanie Barton, Doris Cubitt, Susan Thomas, John McCormick, Nate Leupp, Institute of Management Consultants USA & John Doe(s) 1-40. Amended Complaint Case No. 2018-cp-40-02425, ¶¶2-35. (R 169-176). These defendants are described in the Richland County Complaint as members of leadership in the Republican Party, government agencies or taxpayer supported organizations, political advocacy non-profits, public relations firms, lobbyists, elected politicians or candidates for office.” *Id.* (R 170-176)

Appellant’s argument that the parties are different or could be different does not negate the complaint is between the same Appellant and the same Respondent Nate Leupp described in Richland County Civil Action Number 2018-cp-40-002425. The real parties to this litigation are also named in Richland County. The other defendants do not matter. See *Cox v. Woodmen of World Ins. Co.*, 347 S.C. 460, 469-70, 556 S.E.2d 397, 402 (Ct. App. 2001) (The Court placed weight on decertification of a class action rather than presence of additional plaintiffs. A class action with many additional plaintiffs would have barred another case with the same claim between a single plaintiff and the same defendant had it not been decertified.) This Action is between Jefferson Davis and Nate Leupp. They are the same parties named for the same defamation per se, website, and invasion of privacy causes of action stemming from the same alleged statewide school choice conspiracy that is allegedly being conducted against Appellant.

The Subject Matter is the Same

Both the Richland Complaint and this Complaint describe the same alleged statewide conspiracy against the Appellant over his views and actions in school choice. Complaint Case No. 2019-cp-23-06576, ¶¶17, 48-50, 119 . (R 16, 21-22, 32), Transcript of June 16, 2020, p 57, lines 1-14. (R 137). Transcript of June 16, 2020, pp 8-9, lines 1-14. (R 87-88). *See also* Amended Complaint Case No. 2018-CP-40-02425, ¶¶163-102, (R 198-202). *See also* Amended Complaint Case No. 2018-CP-40-02425, ¶¶163-102, (R 198-202).

There Are No New Viable Causes of Action

A review of Appellant's Greenville County allegations against Nate Leupp are summarized below with the deficiencies noted and showing the remaining core underlying facts and causes of action between the two parties are identical or substantially identical.

This complaint alleges Defamation *per se* due to slander and Defamation *Per Quod*. To prove defamation, the plaintiff must show (1) a false and defamatory statement was made; (2) the unprivileged publication was made to a third party; (3) the publisher was at fault; and (4) either actionability of the statement irrespective of special harm or the existence of special harm caused by the publication. *Fleming v. Rose*, 350 S.C. 488, 494, 567 S.E.2d 857, 860 (2002). When the statement is defamatory *per quod*, "the plaintiff must introduce extrinsic facts to prove the defamatory meaning." *Erickson*, 368 S.C. at 465, 629 S.E.2d at 664. Special damages must be shown when a plaintiff alleges defamation *per quod*. *McBride v. Sch. Dist. of Greenville Cnty.*, supra, 389 S.C. 546, 698 S.E.2d 845, (S.C. App. 2010). Special damages are tangible losses or injuries to the plaintiff's property, business, occupation, or profession in which it is possible to identify a specific amount of money as damages. *Erickson*, 368 S.C. at 465, 629 S.E.2d at 664.

South Carolina only recognizes Slander *per se* in limited circumstances. “Slander is actionable per se when the defendant's alleged defamatory statements charge the plaintiff with one of five types of acts or characteristics: (1) commission of a crime of moral turpitude; (2) contraction of a loathsome disease; (3) adultery; (4) unchastity; or (5) unfitness in one's business or profession.” *Goodwin v. Kennedy*, 347 S.C. 30, 36, 552 S.E.2d 319, 322-23 (Ct.App.2001). *McBride v. Sch. Dist. of Greenville Cnty.*, 389 S.C. 546, 698 S.E.2d 845, 259 Ed. Law Rep. 918 (S.C. App. 2010)

Appellant fails to plead that Respondent Leupp stated he committed a crime, has a disease, cheated on his wife, or is a sexually promiscuous man. Respondent Leupp is alleged to have said Appellant lost his law license, but this is clearly alleged in the Richland County action and should be dismissed under SCRCP 12(b)(8).

Appellant alleges numerous alleged acts attributed to Nate Leupp in this Greenville County action. These acts or sets of facts from the Complaint are listed in the next several sets of paragraphs along with the reason each alleged fact pater fails to set forth a recognized cause of action. It was presented by Respondent Nate Leupp that none of the plethora of facts supplied by Appellant give rise to a justiciable claim. Respondents Memo in Support of Motion to Dismiss (R 52-55). Transcript of June 16, 2020 Hearing (R 108-112) It was also presented that many causes of action and identical sets of facts were already pled in Richland County. *Id.* (R 102-105).

Appellant alleges Nate Leupp created an allegedly defamatory website called “Crooked Jeff.” This is the same website and same defamation claim brought in the Richland County Action between Appellant and Nate Leupp. Amended Complaint Case No. 2018-cp-40-02425 (R 198). As such it was correctly dismissed by the Trial Court pursuant to SCRCP 12(b)(8).

Appellant alleges Respondent Leupp said Appellant is disbarred from practice of law. This claim was made in Richland County against Nate Leupp by the Appellant. Appellant further fails to

state specifics such as to whom the statement was made. SCRCF 12(b)8 applies as it is the same claim between the same parties over the same facts. SCRCF 12(b)(6) applies because sufficient facts are not pled per *Paradis*.

Appellant alleges Nate Leupp said Appellant is not from South Carolina. Appellant made this same claim in Richland County. *Id.* (R 196). There is also no pleading of the special circumstances or link to economic harm required in defamation *per quod*.

Appellant alleges Nate Leupp said Appellant wrecked the Georgia special needs scholarship program. This allegation was also made in the Richland County Case. (*Id.* 197) There is also no pleading of damages. Appellant stated in the transcript that he is retired (R 89) and in the Complaint that he is a volunteer (R 15). Being a retired volunteer contradicts any possibility of required economic harm.

Appellant alleges Nate Leupp invaded Appellant's privacy by having a professional background check performed. SCRCF 12(b)(8) applies because this was explicitly pled in Richland County. (TR Richland County Complaint) Appellant is public figure running for office. A background check is a compilation of publicly available information. These allegations are reasonable, expected, and do not give rise to the mental damage contemplated in invasion of privacy. *Snakenberg v. Hartford Cas. Ins. Co., Inc.*, 383 S.E.2d 2, 299 S.C. 164 (S.C. App. 1989) citing: *Kelley v. Post Publishing Company*, 327 Mass. 275, 278, 98 N.E.2d 286, 287 (1951). ("The law does not provide a remedy for every annoyance that occurs in everyday life,") and citing: *Meetze v. Associated Press*, 230 S.C. 330, 95 S.E.2d 606 (1956). (In order to constitute an invasion of privacy, the defendant's conduct must be of a nature that would cause mental injury to a person of ordinary feelings and intelligence in the same circumstances. The law protects normal sensibilities, not heightened sensitivity, however genuine,) and citing: *Rycroft v. Gaddy, supra* [299 S.C. 172] (plaintiff must show a blatant and shocking disregard of his rights and serious mental injury or humiliation to himself as a result thereof). Whether the

conduct in question meets this test is, in the first instance, a question of law for the court. *Meetze v. Associated Press, supra*. In addition to being pled in Richland County, this set of facts does not give rise to any cause of action pled in the case.

Appellant alleges Nate Leupp called attention to Appellant for filing a lawsuit in Richland County. This is true and Appellant's Richland County Complaint is in this record. Therefore, it is not actionable.

Appellant alleges Nate Leupp said the Tea Party was trying to remove delegates. The Tea Party would be the party with a genuine interest. Appellant fails to plead a specific economic harm from this statement and the Tea Party is not a plaintiff. As such Appellant does not have an interest and therefore standing to bring an action on behalf of the Tea Party under his own name. This is not a justiciable claim.

Appellant alleges Nate Leupp said Appellant tried to remove Linda Gardner from her seat as an executive committee member⁶ and pled that Linda Gardner did not believe Nate Leupp's statement. Appellant fails to plead a specific economic harm or damages. Because Appellant pled Linda Gardner did not believe the statement the necessary damages are undercut by the facts pled.

Appellant alleges Nate Leupp falsely reported the amount of money Appellant made being a "volunteer." Appellant's volunteer status contradicts any alleged economic harm and Appellant fails to plead specifics of the audience necessary pursuant to *Paradis*.

Appellant alleges Nate Leupp kicked Appellant's wife out of a Greenville GOP meeting. Appellant's wife not a plaintiff and the true party of interest. Appellant lacks standing to bring the claim of another.

⁶ Public record indicates Appellant ran for the executive committee seat held by Linda Gardner. See *Parrish*, 376 S.C. at 326, 656 S.E.2d at 392 ("Truth is an affirmative defense...")

Appellant alleges Nate Leupp stated Appellant Davis is homophobic or racist person. Appellant fails to plead exactly what was said, who was the audience, or any specific link to economic harm to the Appellant. As such, the claim is insufficiently pled pursuant to *Paradis*.

Appellant alleges Nate Leupp said that Appellant is Catholic. In the next sentence Appellant pleads that he attends the Catholic Church with his Wife. Appellant does not plead an actionable untrue statement.

Appellant alleges Nate Leupp accessed police records for Pressley Stutts. Pressly Stutts is not a Plaintiff and Appellant lacks standing to bring Pressley Stutt's claims. Appellant is not a real party of interest.

Appellant alleges Nate Leupp asked candidates in his own party to not attend political functions of a different political party. The Tea Party is the real party of interest. Appellant lacks standing to bring a claim where the Tea Party is the party of interest. Furthermore, this does not appear actionable through the causes of action pled in this case.

Appellant alleges Nate Leupp slashed Pressley Stutts' tires. Pressley Stutts is the real party of interest and not a plaintiff. Appellant lacks standing to bring the claim of Pressley Stutts.

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